
FAIRFIELD CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

FAIRFIELD MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
5350 PLEASANT AVENUE 

FAIRFIELD, OHIO  45014 
 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 10, 2014        7:00 PM 
 
 
MAYOR………………………………….STEVE MILLER    COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…CHAD OBERSON 
COUNCILMEMBER 1ST WARD……….ADAM B. JONES    COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…MIKE SNYDER 
COUNCILMEMBER 2ND WARD………MARTY JUDD    COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…BILL WOESTE 
COUNCILMEMBER 3RD WARD………DEBBIE PENNINGTON   CITY MANAGER………………….ARTHUR E. PIZZANO 
COUNCILMEMBER 4TH WARD………TERRY SENGER    CLERK OF COUNCIL…………….ALISHA WILSON 

LAW DIRECTOR………………….JOHN H. CLEMMONS 
 
Guidelines for Citizen Comments: Thank you for your interest and participation in city government.  Fairfield City Council’s Guidelines for Citizen 
Comments describe the rules for addressing City Council. The guidelines are posted in the Council Chambers. 
 
ADA Notice:  The City of Fairfield is pleased to provide accommodations to disabled individuals or groups and encourage full participation in city 
government.  Should special accommodations be required, please contact the Clerk of Council at 867-5383 at least 48 hours in advance of the 
meeting. 

 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Prayer/Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Roll Call 
 
4. Agenda Modifications 
 
5. Executive Session Requests 
 
6. Public Hearing(s) 
 

a) Joint Public Hearing – 4990 Winton Road Re-Zoning 
 
7. Special Presentations and Citizen Comments 
 
8. Mayor/Council Reports 

 
9. Approval of Minutes 
 

a) Regular Meeting Minutes of  January 27, 2014 
 
10. OLD BUSINESS 

 
(A) PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

Chad Oberson, Chairman; Mike Snyder, Vice Chairman, Bill Woeste, Member 
 

(1)  Resolution declaring necessity of repairing sidewalks (including aprons). 
 

• Resolution – Third Reading 
• Motion – Adoption  

 
(B) DEVELOPMENT SERVICES COMMITTEE 

Bill Woeste, Chairman; Adam Jones, Vice Chairman, Mike Snyder, Member 
 
(1)  Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 166-84, the Codified Ordinances of Fairfield, Ohio, Section 1141.02, 

the City of Fairfield, Ohio, Zoning Map. 
 

• Ordinance – Second Reading 
 



Page 2  
Agenda 

Regular Meeting 
February 10, 2014 

 
(2)  Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a Professional Services Contract with the Fairfield 

Chamber of Commerce. 
 

• Ordinance – Second Reading 
 

(C) PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMITTEE 
Marty Judd, Chairman; Chad Oberson, Vice Chairman, Adam Jones, Member 

 
(1)  An Ordinance granting Butler Rural Electric Cooperative, Inc., its successors and assigns, the right to 

acquire, construct, maintain and operate in the streets, thoroughfares, alleys, bridges and public places of the 
City of Fairfield, State of Ohio and its successors, lines for the distribution of electric power and energy to parts 
of the City of Fairfield and the inhabitants thereof for light, heat, power and other purposes and for the 
transmission of the same within, through or across said City of Fairfield, State of Ohio. 
 

• Ordinance – Second Reading 
 
11.  NEW BUSINESS 
 

(A) PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
Adam Jones, Chairman; Marty Judd, Vice Chairman, Terry Senger, Member 
 
(1) Simple Motion:  Motion to approve a liquor permit application in the name of KBJK, LLC, 7181 Dixie 

Highway, Fairfield, OH 45014 (Permit Classes: D5). 
 

(B)  PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMITTEE 
Marty Judd, Chairman; Chad Oberson, Vice Chairman, Adam Jones, Member 

 
(1) Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a one (1) year contract with Carmeuse North America for 

the purchase of lime for use in the Water Division. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 

 
(C)  DEVELOPMENT SERVICES COMMITTEE 

Bill Woeste, Chairman; Adam Jones, Vice Chairman, Mike Snyder, Member 
 

(1) Ordinance to amend various sections of Ordinance No. 166-84, the Codified Ordinances of Fairfield, Ohio, 
relative to the City of Fairfield Design, Construction and Material Specifications Handbook, Storm Water 
Quality Management Plan, Drainage, Water and Sewer Requirements. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Set Joint Public Hearing for February 24, 2014 

 
(D)  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

Chad Oberson, Chairman; Mike Snyder, Vice Chairman, Bill Woeste, Member 
 

(1) Ordinance releasing the maintenance bond and accepting public improvements for the Iwata Drive Dedication 
Plat. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 3  
Agenda 

Regular Meeting 
February 10, 2014 

 
(2) Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a one (1) year contract with options for years two (2) and 

Three (3) with R.A. Miller of Hamilton, Ohio for the 2014 Sidewalk/Apron Replacement Program. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 

 
(E) FINANCE & BUDGET COMMITTEE 

Terry Senger, Chairman; Debbie Pennington, Vice Chairman, Chad Oberson, Member 
 

(1) Contractual Appropriations - $382,000 for 2014 Sidewalk/Apron and Curb Replacement Program 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(2) Non-Contractual Appropriations - $49,500 for Sidewalk Repair – 2014 Sidewalk Program 

 
• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
12. Meeting Schedule 

 
Monday, February 24 Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
Monday, March 10 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
Monday, March 24 Council-Manager Briefing, 5:30 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
 

13. Executive Session of Council (if needed) 
 

14. Adjournment 



 

NEWS RELEASE 
 
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
Fairfield City Council 
January 31, 2014 
 

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
CITY OF FAIRFIELD, OHIO 

 
All property owners and citizens of Fairfield, OH are hereby notified that a joint public hearing 
between the Planning Commission and City Council has been scheduled for 7:00 PM Monday, 
February 10, 2014 at the Fairfield Municipal Building at 5350 Pleasant Avenue, Fairfield OH  
45014.  The purpose of the hearing is to solicit citizen input regarding a change in zoning from 
C-3, General Business District to R-2, One to Four Family Residential District, for property 
located at 4990 Winton Road. 
 
Parties wishing to review the application may do so by visiting the Development Services 
Department located at the Fairfield Municipal Building or at the City website at www.fairfield-
city.org/devservices.  Questions may be directed to the Department by telephone at (513) 867-
5345 or via e-mail at development@fairfield-city.org.  The Department is open business days 
between the hours of 8:00 AM and 5:00 PM. 
 
Alisha Wilson 
Clerk of Council 
 
For insertion in the Journal News Friday, January 31, 2014. 
 

http://www.fairfield-city.org/devservices
http://www.fairfield-city.org/devservices
mailto:development@fairfield-city.org


MINUTES  
REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL  

JANUARY 27, 2014  
 
Call to Order  
Mayor Steve Miller called the Regular Meeting of Council to order at 7:00 PM at the Fairfield Municipal 
Building, 5350 Pleasant Avenue. 
 
Prayer/Pledge of Allegiance  
Councilmember Pennington led in prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Roll Call  
Clerk Wilson called the roll of Council. Present members were Councilmember Marty Judd, 
Councilmember Debbie Pennington, Councilmember Terry Senger, Councilmember Chad Oberson, 
Councilmember Mike Snyder, and Councilmember Bill Woeste. 
 
Councilmember Pennington, seconded by Councilmember Judd, moved to excuse Councilmember 
Jones. 
 
Agenda Modifications  
 
Executive Session Requests  
Councilmember Judd, seconded by Councilmember Snyder, moved for Executive Session to discuss 
imminent litigation. Motion carried 6-0. 
 
Public Hearing(s)  
 
Special Presentations and Citizen Comments  
Mayor Miller administered the oath of office to Officer Thomas Portaleos, Officer Samuel Larsh and 
Firefighter Kyle Temple. 
 
Police Chief Mike Dickey presented commendations to Sgt. Steve Maynard, Sgt. Amy Mays, Officer Brian 
Rednour, and Officer Martin Day for their outstanding work to rescue a woman that was shot in October 
2013. The victim did not survive, but the officers deserve recognition for going above and beyond in 
their attempts to save her. 
 
Parks and Recreation Board member Doug Meece presented plaques to Councilmembers Marty Judd 
and Terry Senger for their years of service with the board. He thanked them for their dedication to the 
city.  
 
Dan Compston, 978-A Nilles Road, addressed council regarding Mr. Doug Songer's issue related to his 
granddaughter. He stated that he is an investigator for the attorney for Mr. Songer and Eric Deters' law 
firm. Mr. Compston detailed his investigation into the alleged abuse of Mr. Songer's granddaughter for 
Council. 
 
Police Chief Mike Dickey addressed Council and provided some of the information in his file related to 
the situation with Mr. Songer. He stated that Council was welcome to sit down with him to look at the 
file, if there are additional questions that cannot be addressed in an open forum. Chief Dickey stated 



that the case boils down to a custody dispute and that there is not enough evidence to support a child 
abuse charge. 
 
Mark Eppley, 635 W. 7th Street, Suite 401, Cincinnati, Ohio, attorney for Mr. Songer, addressed Council 
regarding the situation. He stated that the issue is more than child custody, but is a child abuse 
situation. He suggested that the case be sent to Columbus for review by BCI and that the findings of BCI 
will stand. He stated that if BCI states there is a child abuse situation, it is incumbent upon Fairfield 
Police Department to investigate the case. 
 
Mayor/Council Reports  
Councilmember Pennington wished her husband of 41 years a happy anniversary. She reported that the 
shows at the Community Arts Center are listed online. The shows for the upcoming weekend are sold 
out, but there are many other shows on the schedule. 
 
Councilmember Senger thanked Doug Meece and the Parks and Recreation Board for their recognition. 
He enjoyed the time that he served with them and the projects they accomplished. Councilmember 
Senger also thanked the Police and Fire personnel for their hard work in the community. 
 
Councilmember Oberson thanked Public Works for their excellent work on the city roads this winter. 
 
Councilmember Snyder reported that Ki'Jana Rogers, a Fairfield High School senior, will compete in the 
local NAACP's Afro-Academic, Cultural, Technological and Scientific Olympics in the architecture 
category. Fairfield architect Derek Howard is mentoring Rogers. Councilmember Snyder also reported 
that the Fairfield Show Choirs traveled to Wisconsin for their first competition of the season and 
congratulated them on their performances. 
 
Approval of Minutes  
Regular Meeting Minutes of January 13, 2014  

• The Regular Meeting Minutes of January 13, 2014 were approved as written 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
Chad Oberson, Chairman; Mike Snyder, Vice Chairman, Bill Woeste, Member 

 
Resolution declaring necessity of repairing sidewalks (including aprons).  
 
Councilmember Oberson presented the second reading of this resolution. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES COMMITTEE 
Bill Woeste, Chairman; Adam Jones, Vice Chairman, Mike Snyder, Member 

 
Councilmember Bill Woeste, seconded by Councilmember Terry Senger moved to read the following two 
ordinances by title only. Motion Carried 6-0. 
 



Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 166-84, the Codified Ordinances of Fairfield, Ohio, Section 1141.02, 
the City of Fairfield, Ohio, Zoning Map.  
 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended an ordinance to amend the zoning map. There will be 
a joint public hearing on this re-zoning at the next council meeting on February 10. Legislative Action: 
Councilmember Woeste presented the first reading of this ordinance. 
 

Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a Professional Services Contract with the Fairfield 
Chamber of Commerce.  
 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended a contract with Fairfield Chamber of Commerce. The 
city has contracted with the chamber for many years, and as a result, receives numerous reports and 
other support from the chamber. Legislative Action: Councilmember Woeste presented the first reading 
of this ordinance. 
 

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMITTEE 
Marty Judd, Chairman; Chad Oberson, Vice Chairman, Adam Jones, Member 

 
Councilmember Marty Judd, seconded by Councilmember Debbie Pennington moved to read the 
following two ordinances by title only. Motion Carried 6-0. 
 
Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Bronco Excavating, Inc. for the 
Seward I Road Sewage Pump Station.  
 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended a contract with Bronco Excavating, Inc. for the Seward 
I Road Sewage Pump Station. Legislative Action: Councilmember Judd presented the first reading of this 
ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Marty Judd, seconded by Councilmember Bill Woeste moved to suspend the rules 
requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 6-0. Councilmember Marty Judd, 
seconded by Councilmember Terry Senger moved to adopt . Motion Carried 6-0. ORDINANCE NO. 4-14. 
APPROVED 6-0. 
 
An Ordinance granting Butler Rural Electric Cooperative, Inc., its successors and assigns, the right to 
acquire, construct, maintain and operate in the streets, thoroughfares, alleys, bridges and public places 
of the City of Fairfield, State of Ohio and its successors, lines for the distribution of electric power and 
energy to parts of the City of Fairfield and the inhabitants thereof for light, heat, power and other 
purposes and for the transmission of the same within, through or across said City of Fairfield, State of 
Ohio.  
 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended an agreement with Butler Rural Electric. This is a 
renewal of the existing franchise agreement that allows them to operate within the city of Fairfield, 
Ohio. Legislative Action: Councilmember Judd presented the first reading of this ordinance. 
 
 
 



PARKS, RECREATION AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
Debbie Pennington, Chairman; Terry Senger, Vice Chairman, Marty Judd, Member 

 

Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Robert P. O’Brien Enterprises, 
Incorporated, DBA Shamrock Enterprises for the Fairfield Aquatic Center Renovation Project.  
 
Councilmember Debbie Pennington, seconded by Councilmember Chad Oberson moved to read the 
following ordinance by title only. Motion Carried 6-0. 
 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended a contract for the Fairfield Aquatic Center Renovation 
Project. Issues arose last year that were temporarily fixed, but now the renovations are necessary 
before the beginning of the next season. Legislative Action: Councilmember Pennington presented the 
first reading of this ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Debbie Pennington, seconded by Councilmember Chad Oberson moved to suspend the 
rules requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 6-0. Councilmember Debbie 
Pennington, seconded by Councilmember Terry Senger moved to adopt . Motion Carried 6-0. 
ORDINANCE NO. 5-14. APPROVED 6-0. 
 

FINANCE & BUDGET COMMITTEE 
Terry Senger, Chairman; Debbie Pennington, Vice Chairman, Chad Oberson, Member 

 
Councilmember Terry Senger, seconded by Councilmember Debbie Pennington moved to read the 
following two (2) ordinances by title only. Motion Carried 6-0. 
 
Contractual Appropriations - $400,000 for the Seward I Road Sewage Pump Station Project; $250,000 for 
the Fairfield Aquatic Center Renovation Project.  
 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended contractual appropriations for the two (2) previously 
approved contracts. Legislative Action: Councilmember Senger presented the first reading of this 
ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Terry Senger, seconded by Councilmember Marty Judd moved to suspend the rules 
requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 6-0. Councilmember Terry Senger, 
seconded by Councilmember Marty Judd moved to adopt . Motion Carried 6-0. ORDINANCE NO. 6-14. 
APPROVED 6-0. 
 
Non-Contractual Appropriations - $5,200 purchase of audio/visual equipment for Municipal Building 
conference room; $30,000 for Comprehensive Parks and Recreation Master Plan.  
 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended appropriations for audio/visual equipment in the 
Development Services conference room and a Comprehensive Parks and Recreation Master Plan. 
Legislative Action: Councilmember Senger presented the first reading of this ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Terry Senger, seconded by Councilmember Chad Oberson moved to suspend the rules 
requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 6-0. Councilmember Terry Senger, 



seconded by Councilmember Chad Oberson moved to adopt . Motion Carried 6-0. ORDINANCE NO. 7-14. 
APPROVED 6-0. 
 
Meeting Schedule  
Clerk Wilson read the following meeting schedule: 
 

• Monday, February 10 Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m.  
• Monday, February 24 Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m.  
• Monday, March 10 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m.  

 
Executive Session of Council (if needed)  
Council adjourned to Executive Session at 8:00 PM. 
 
Adjournment  
The Regular Meeting of Council adjourned at 8:50 PM. 
 
 
ATTEST:  

_____________________________    _____________________________ 
Clerk of Council      Mayor's Approval 

Date Approved__________________ 

 
 
 
 
 















































































































































































































































































 
 
 

CITY OF  FAIRFIELD,  OHIO 
 
 
 
 

   
   
   

INDEX 
 
 

  INTRODUCTION    1.1 
  STORM DRAINAGE    2.1 
  ROADWAY     3.1 
  WATER SUPPLY    4.1 
  WASTEWATER    5.1 
 
 
 
 

FOURTH FIFTH EDITION 
 

Adopted  09-24-07 
 

Ordinance  120-07 
 

(Print  Date  09-24-07) 





















































































































































































































































































































CHAPTER 906             DRAINAGE MAINTENANCE AND ABATEMENT PROCEDURE     
906.01 ROUTINE AND REMEDIAL MAINTENANCE. 
906.02 ABATEMENT PROCEDURES. 
906.03 POST-CONSTRUCTION STORMWATER BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICE OPERATION 
 AND MAINTENANCE. 
906.99 PENALTY. 
 
906.01 ROUTINE AND REMEDIAL MAINTENANCE. 

 

 

 

 

 

(A) OWNERS OF PROPERTIES WITH STORMWATER BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMPS) 
ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE AS SPECIFIED IN SECTION 906.03.  
THE PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR SHALL PROVIDE FOR INSPECTION AND ROUTINE 
MAINTENANCE OF FACILITIES THAT HAVE BEEN ACCEPTED FOR MAINTENANCE BY THE 
CITY.  CITY MAINTENANCE MAY INCLUDE STORM WATER CONVEYANCE- RELATED 
STRUCTURE CLEANING AND REPAIR. 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

(B) THE PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR, IN THE PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR'S SOLE DISCRETION, 
MAY PROVIDE FOR REMEDIAL MAINTENANCE OF FACILITIES BASED UPON THE SEVERITY 
OF STORM WATER PROBLEMS AND POTENTIAL HAZARD TO THE PUBLIC HEALTH AND 
SAFETY, THROUGH THE ABATEMENT PROCEDURES DESCRIBED IN SECTION 906.02.  FOR 
PURPOSES OF THIS CHAPTER, MAINTENANCE ASSOCIATED WITH RETENTION/DETENTION 
BASINS INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, MOWING, RIVULET REPAIR, BASIN BOTTOM FILL, 
SEEDING, FERTILIZING AND/OR ALGAE REMOVAL, ARE NOT CONSIDERED "POTENTIALLY 
HAZARDOUS" TO THE PUBLIC NOR "SEVERE" STORM WATER PROBLEMS, AND 
MAINTENANCE WILL NOT BE PROVIDED BY THE CITY EXCEPT IN CASE OF PUBLIC 
EMERGENCY AS DETERMINED BY THE PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR.  

 

            
906.02 ABATEMENT PROCEDURES. 

 
 

   (A) NOTICE TO CORRECT IMPROPER DRAINAGE.    

 

 

 

 

 

(1) WHENEVER THE CITY SHALL FIND THAT (I) A TRACT OF LAND NOT MAINTAINED BY 
THE CITY IS INADEQUATELY DRAINED, OR (II) THERE IS EXCESSIVE EROSION OR 
SEDIMENTATION UPON SUCH LAND, OR (III) THERE IS AN OBSTRUCTION TO A 
CULVERT OR WATER COURSE UPON SUCH LAND THAT INTERFERES WITH WATER 
NATURALLY FLOWING THEREIN, OR (IV) THAT SUCH CULVERT, STORM SEWER OR 
WATERCOURSE UPON SUCH LAND IS OF INSUFFICIENT CAPACITY TO REASONABLY 
ACCOMMODATE THE FLOW OF WATER, AS REQUIRED BY THE CITY, THE CITY SHALL 
NOTIFY THE OWNER OR PERSON HAVING POSSESSION, CHARGE, OR MANAGEMENT 
OF SUCH LAND TO REMOVE THE OBSTRUCTION, PROVIDE ADEQUATE DRAINAGE, FILL 
OR DRAIN SUCH LAND, ENLARGE THE CULVERTS, DRAINS, OR WATERCOURSES, 
MITIGATE EXCESSIVE EROSION OR SEDIMENTATION, AND/OR ACCOMPLISH ANY 
OTHER ACT DETERMINED BY THE PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR NECESSARY TO BE 
NECESSARY TO FURTHER THE PURPOSES OF THIS CHAPTER. SUCH NOTICE SHALL BE 
SERVED ON SUCH PERSONS OR ENTITY IN THE SAME MANNER AS PROVIDED BY THE 
OHIO RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE FOR SERVICE OF SUMMONS AND THE PUBLIC 
WORKS DIRECTOR OR HIS DESIGNEE MAY POST A NOTICE AT THE PROPERTY.  THE 
ADDRESS UTILIZED FOR ANY SERVICE SHALL BE THE PROPERTY ADDRESS ITSELF AND 
THE TAX BILLING ADDRESS FOR SUCH PREMISES AS MAINTAINED ON THE RECORDS 
OF THE BUTLER COUNTY AUDITOR.  

 

  
 

   



 

(2) THE OWNER MUST COMPLY WITH THE CITY’S ORDERS WITHIN A REASONABLE TIME 
NOT TO EXCEED 30 DAYS, UNLESS AN EXTENSION IS GRANTED BY THE PUBLIC WORKS 
DIRECTOR FOR GOOD CAUSE SHOWN. FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH SUCH ORDER SHALL 
CONSTITUTE AN UNLAWFUL ACT. EACH ADDITIONAL DAY THEREAFTER DURING 
WHICH THE OWNER FAILS TO CARRY OUT THE ORDER OF THE CITY SHALL CONSTITUTE 
A SEPARATE OFFENSE.  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

A. IN ANY CASE WHERE A CONDITION DESCRIBED ABOVE EXISTS FOR MORE THAN 30 
DAYS AFTER SERVICE OF NOTICE, THE PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR OR HIS DESIGNEE 
MAY ISSUE AN ORDER TO THE PROPERTY OWNER(S) STATING THAT THEY ARE IN 
VIOLATION; THAT THE CITY MAY AFFECT THE NECESSARY REPAIRS PER SECTION 
906.02 (B) OR THAT THE CITY MAY FILE CRIMINAL CHARGES, OR BOTH. 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

B. IN THE EVENT AN OWNER FAILS OR REFUSES TO COMPLY WITH THE PUBLIC WORKS 
DIRECTOR’S DIRECTIVE, THE CITY MAY PROVIDE THE PERFORMANCE OF THE 
REQUIRED WORK AND CHARGE THE OWNER THE ABATEMENT COSTS.  

  

 

 

 

 

 

C. EACH AND EVERY OWNER OF REAL PROPERTY IN THE CITY CONSENTS TO THE 
ENTRY UPON ANY REAL PROPERTY IN THE CITY FOR ALL REASONABLE TIMES DURING 
NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS FOR THE PURPOSE OF INSPECTION, REPAIR OR 
MAINTENANCE REQUIRED BY THIS CHAPTER.  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

(3) FAILURE OF THE CITY TO OBSERVE OR RECOGNIZE HAZARDOUS OR UNSIGHTLY 
CONDITIONS OR TO RECOMMEND DENIAL OF A PERMIT/ZONING CHANGE SHALL 
NOT RELIEVE THE OWNER OR PERSON HAVING POSSESSION, CHARGE, OR 
MANAGEMENT OF SUCH LAND FROM THE RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONDITION OR 
DAMAGE RESULTING THEREFROM, AND SHALL NOT RESULT IN THE CITY, ITS OFFICERS 
OR AGENTS FROM BEING RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY CONDITION OR DAMAGE 
RESULTING THEREFROM. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

(4) NOTHING IN THIS CHAPTER SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS AUTHORIZING ANY PERSON 
TO MAINTAIN A PRIVATE OR PUBLIC NUISANCE ON HIS PROPERTY, AND 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THIS CHAPTER SHALL NOT BE A DEFENSE IN 
ANY ACTION TO ABATE SUCH NUISANCE. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

(5) NOTHING IN THIS CHAPTER SHALL BE CONSTRUED TO PREVENT IMMEDIATE 
ACTION BY THE CITY IN EMERGENCY SITUATIONS. IN CASE OF AN EMERGENCY, THE 
CITY MAY DIRECT THAT ACTION BE TAKEN IMMEDIATELY TO CORRECT THE 
CONDITION OR ABATE THE ACTIVITY TO PROTECT THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND 
WELFARE. THE CITY MAY PERFORM THE REQUIRED WORK AND CHARGE THE OWNER 
THE ABATEMENT COSTS. 

 

   

     (B) ABATEMENT COSTS.    

 

 

 

 

 

(1) IF THE OWNER OR OCCUPANT HAVING THE CARE OF THE LANDS MENTIONED IN 
SECTION 906.01 FAILS TO COMPLY WITH THE NOTICE PROVIDED IN FOR SECTION 
906.02 (A), THE CITY SHALL CAUSE SUCH ABATEMENT PROCEDURES TO BE 
IMPLEMENTED. THE COST FOR SUCH ABATEMENT PROCEDURES SHALL BE 
IMMEDIATELY DUE AND PAYABLE TO THE CITY, PROVIDED, HOWEVER, THAT AN 
ADMINISTRATIVE FEE SHALL BE CHARGED IN THE AMOUNT OF ONE HUNDRED 
DOLLARS. THE COST OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE FEE TOGETHER WITH THE COST OF THE 
ABATEMENT PROCEDURE TOGETHER WITH ANY LEGAL FEES INCURRED BY THE CITY 
SHALL BE ASSESSED AGAINST THE OWNER AND, IF UNPAID, AGAINST THE LOT OR 
LAND TOGETHER WITH INTEREST THEREON AT THE THEN JUDGMENT RATE IN EFFECT 
IN THE STATE OF OHIO. 

 

  
 

   



 

(2) NOTICE OF SUCH ASSESSMENT SHALL BE GIVEN TO THE OWNER OF THE LOT OR 
LAND CHARGED THEREWITH AND THE OCCUPANT BY MAILING SUCH NOTICE TO THE 
ADDRESS UTILIZED BY THE COUNTY TREASURER FOR BILLING PURPOSES AND BY 
POSTING A NOTICE OF ASSESSMENT AT THE SUBJECT PREMISES. SERVICE MAY ALSO 
BE MADE IN ANY MANNER PROVIDED FOR SERVICE OF SUMMONS BY THE OHIO 
RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE. ALL ASSESSMENTS NOT PAID WITHIN TEN DAYS AFTER 
SUCH MAILING AND POSTING, SHALL BE CERTIFIED TO THE COUNTY AUDITOR TO BE 
PLACED ON THE TAX DUPLICATE AND COLLECTED AS OTHER TAXES ARE COLLECTED. 

 

            
 

 
 

 
 
906.03 POST-CONSTRUCTION STORMWATER BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICE 
OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE.  
  

 
 

   (A) OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PLAN.    

 

 

 

 

 

(1) THE DEVELOPER/PROPERTY OWNER SHALL PREPARE AN OPERATION AND 
MAINTENANCE PLAN MEETING THE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS OF THE LATEST 
VERSION OF THE OHIO EPA NPDES CONSTRUCTION STORMWATER PERMIT FOR 
REDEVELOPMENT AND NEW DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS WHEREIN CONSTRUCTION 
ACTIVITIES WILL RESULT IN THE DISTURBANCE OF ONE OR MORE ACRES.  

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

(2) THE OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PLAN SHALL BE SUBMITTED BY THE 
DEVELOPER/PROPERTY OWNER TO CITY OF FAIRFIELD FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL 
PRIOR TO THE CITY ISSUING THE BUILDING PERMIT.   

  
 

 
 

 
 
(3) THE OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PLAN MUST BE A STAND-ALONE DOCUMENT 
CONTAINING THE FOLLOWING:  
  
 

 
 

 
 
A. DESIGNATE THE ENTITY ASSOCIATED WITH PROVIDING THE BEST MANAGEMENT 
PRACTICES (BMPS) INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE.   
  
 

 
 

 
 
B. INDICATE ROUTINE AND NON-ROUTINE MAINTENANCE TASKS TO BE 
UNDERTAKEN.   
  

     C. INDICATE A SCHEDULE FOR INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE TASKS.    
 

 

 

 

 

D. PROVIDE PROOF OF ANY NECESSARY LEGALLY BINDING MAINTENANCE 
EASEMENTS AND AGREEMENTS THAT ARE NECESSARY TO PROPERLY INSPECT AND 
MAINTAIN THE BMP(S).  

  
 

 

 

 

 

E. PROVIDE A MAP SHOWING THE LOCATION OF THE BMP(S) THAT ARE INDICATED 
ON THE CITY OF FAIRFIELD APPROVED STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN 
(SWPPP) AND NECESSARY ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENTS.  

  
 

 
 

 
 
F. PROVIDE DETAILED BMP DRAWINGS AND INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE 
PROCEDURES.   
  
 

 

 

 

 

G. ENSURE THAT THE COLLECTED POLLUTANTS RESULTING FROM BMP MAINTENANCE 
ACTIVITIES ARE DISPOSED OF IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL, STATE AND FEDERAL 
GUIDELINES.   

   

 

 

 

 

 

(B) DECLARATION OF COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS. A DECLARATION OF COVENANTS 
AND RESTRICTIONS SHALL BE MADE BETWEEN THE OWNER AND THE CITY OF FAIRFIELD 
ENSURING THAT THE BMP(S) SHALL BE PROPERLY INSPECTED AND MAINTAINED AND 
SHALL BE INCLUDED WITHIN THE OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PLAN. 

 

   

     (C) INSPECTION.    
 

 
 

 
 
(1) PERSONNEL IDENTIFIED WITHIN THE OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PLAN SHALL 
INSPECT THE BMP(S) TO ENSURE PROPER FUNCTIONALITY AND DETERMINE IF  



MAINTENANCE IS NECESSARY. 
  
 

 
 

 
 
(2) AT A MINIMUM, INSPECTIONS ARE TO BE CONDUCTED ON AN ANNUAL BASIS, OR 
AS SPECIFIED IN THE OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PLAN.  
  
 

 

 

 

 

(3) WRITTEN INSPECTION REPORTS SUMMARIZING THE BMP(S) INSPECTION 
OBSERVATIONS AND MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS ARE TO BE SUBMITTED TO THE 
CITY OF FAIRFIELD UPON REQUEST BY THE CITY.  

   

     (D) MAINTENANCE.    
 

 
 

 
 
(1) ALL BMPS ARE TO BE MAINTAINED ACCORDING TO THE MEASURES OUTLINED 
WITHIN THE OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PLAN.   
  
 

 

 

 

 

(2) ENSURE THAT THE COLLECTED POLLUTANTS RESULTING FROM BMP MAINTENANCE 
ACTIVITIES ARE DISPOSED OF IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL, STATE AND FEDERAL 
GUIDELINES.   

  

 

 

 

 

 

(3) THE OWNER SHALL MAKE NECESSARY REPAIRS WITHIN FOURTEEN DAYS OF THEIR 
DISCOVERY AS IDENTIFIED WITHIN THE INSPECTION REPORTS OR THROUGH A 
REQUEST FROM THE CITY OF FAIRFIELD RESULTING FROM CITY CONDUCTED 
INSPECTIONS. 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 
(4) MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES PERFORMED ARE TO BE DOCUMENTED ON A WRITTEN 
REPORT AND SUBMITTED TO THE CITY OF FAIRFIELD UPON REQUEST.  
  

 

   

 

(5) IN ADDITION TO ANY APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF SECTIONS 906.01AND 906.02, 
THE OWNER SHALL GRANT PERMISSION TO THE CITY OF FAIRFIELD TO ENTER THE 
PROPERTY AND INSPECT THE BMP(S) WHENEVER THE CITY DEEMS NECESSARY. IN AN 
EVENT OF ANY DEFAULT OR FAILURE BY THE OWNER IN PROPERLY MAINTAINING THE 
BMP(S) IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPROVED OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE 
PLAN, OR, IN THE EVENT OF AN EMERGENCY AS DETERMINED BY THE CITY OF 
FAIRFIELD, IT IS THE SOLE DISCRETION OF THE CITY, AFTER PROVIDING REASONABLE 
NOTICE TO THE OWNER, TO ENTER THE PROPERTY AND TAKE WHATEVER STEPS 
NECESSARY TO CORRECT DEFICIENCIES AND TO CHARGE THE COST OF SUCH REPAIRS 
TO THE OWNER. NOTHING HEREIN SHALL OBLIGATE THE CITY TO MAINTAIN THE 
BMP(S).  

  

             
906.99 PENALTY. 

 

 

 

 

 

(A) ANY PERSON OR ENTITY HAVING BEEN DETERMINED TO VIOLATE THIS CHAPTER OR 
WHO ENTERS A PLEA TO A VIOLATION THEREOF SHALL BE GUILTY OF A THIRD DEGREE 
MISDEMEANOR.  EACH AND EVERY DAY DURING WHICH SUCH VIOLATION CONTINUES 
SHALL CONSTITUTE A SEPARATE OFFENSE. 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

(B) THE IMPOSITION OF ANY FINE OR PENALTY PURSUANT TO THIS CHAPTER SHALL NOT 
PRECLUDE THE LAW DIRECTOR FROM INSTITUTING ANY APPROPRIATE LEGAL 
PROCEEDING IN A COURT OF PROPER JURISDICTION TO CORRECT OR ABATE A 
VIOLATION, REQUIRE COMPLIANCE WITH THIS CHAPTER OR OTHER APPLICABLE 
CHAPTERS, ORDINANCES, REGULATIONS OR RULES OF THE CITY OR STATE OF OHIO AS 
DETERMINED TO BE APPROPRIATE BY SUCH LAW DIRECTOR.  

 

 



CHAPTER 921 – WATER 
 
921.03   APPLICATION FOR CONNECTION  
(e) Replacement or Repair of Service Branches. Where a service branch is installed, the Water 
Division shall repair and maintain it or replace it with a branch of the same size from the main to 
and including the curb stop valve if the valve is outside WITHIN the right of way or to the 
limits of the right of way if the valve is inside OUTSIDE OF the right of way. The property 
owner is responsible for maintaining the service branch from the edge of the right of way to the 
SAID LOCATION TO THE PREMISES, WITH THE EXCEPTION OF THE WATER 
METER, TO ASSURE A SAFE WATER SUPPLY AND IN A STRUCTURAL 
CONDITION THAT WILL PERMIT WATER SERVICE WITHOUT LEAKAGE. 
COMPLETE REPLACEMENT MUST BE MADE WHERE IT IS DETERMINED BY 
THE WATER DIVISION THAT A LINE IS UNSERVICEABLE. FAILURE BY THE 
OWNER TO MAKE TIMELY REPAIRS TO OR REPLACEMENT OF THE SERVICE 
LINE WILL RESULT IN THE TERMINATION OF WATER SERVICE INCLUDING 
SERVICE LINES PROPOSED FOR RE-USE FOR NEW CONSTRUCTION. Ultimate 
point of use. 
(Ord. 20-87. Passed 2-23-87.) 
 
921.04     LICENSE; BONDING REQUIREMENTS 
(a)     License.   Any person, firm or corporation working on any part of the City’s water 
distribution system, including water service lines and water meters, must first obtain a valid 
water service license issued and signed by the Public Utilities Director or his/her 
designee.  Application for such license shall be made to the Public Works Utilities Director, and 
a license fee of thirty dollars ($30.00) shall accompany the application.  The license shall be 
valid within the calendar year that it was issued, and must be renewed cyclical on January 1st 
with an additional fee paid each year.  The license applicant shall be required to prove to the 
satisfaction of the Public Utilities Director and City Manager that he/she possesses the 
qualifications necessary for working on the City’s water distribution system.  The applicant may 
be required to pass a test as to competency under the bylaws and regulations adopted by the City 
of Fairfield.  A license may be revoked by the Public Utilities Director if the licensee violates 
any laws, ordinances, bylaws and regulations governing work on the City water distribution 
system.   
(Ord. 128-07.  Passed 10-9-07.) 
 



CHAPTER 925 - SEWERS 
 
925.03     GENERAL SEWER CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS. 

 (g)     Inspections.    

 

  

 

 

(1)     All sewer and appurtenant structures shall be inspected during construction, 
and installation AND REPAIR by the Public Works Director or inspectors 
assigned by him and responsible to him.  

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

(2)     The Public Works Director shall appoint or designate an inspector for 
periodical or continuous inspection as the type of work may require or as he 
deems necessary.  

     

925.05     CONNECTION TO PUBLIC SEWERS 

 (c)     License Required for Construction. 

 

 

 

 

 

          (1)     Sewer tapper’s license.  A sewer service LATERAL AND/OR connection may 
only be made, built or repaired by a person, firm or corporation having a sewer tapper’s 
license issued by the Public Utilities Director.  Application for such licenses must be made 
to the Public Utilities Director and a license fee of thirty dollars ($30.00) shall accompany 
the application.  The license shall be valid for one year, and must be renewed and an 
additional license fee paid each year.  The license applicant shall be required to prove to the 
satisfaction of the Public Utilities Director that he/she possesses the qualifications necessary 
for a competent sewer builder.  The applicant may be required to pass a test as to 
competency under the bylaws and regulations adopted by the Public Utilities Director. 

 

 
 
925.07     SPECIAL STORM SEWER RULES.   
 
     (a)     Permit; Fee. No connection shall be made to a public storm sewer within the City until the 
written permission of the Public Works Director or his designee has been obtained by the person, 
firm or corporation proposing to or employed to perform the work.  An application for a permit 
shall be signed by the owner or agent of the property for which the connection is desired and by 
the person, firm or corporation employed to perform the work; shall describe the property and 
state the purpose for which the connection is desired; and shall be accompanied by a fee in 
accordance with the following schedule: 
  
 (1)     Existing residential structure sump pump drain pipe     $10.00   
 (2)     Existing residential structure roof downspout               $10.00   
 (3)     Existing residential structure yard drain pipe              $10.00   
          (6-inch diameter or less)  
 (4)     Existing residential structure storm sewer pipe             $25.00   
          (up to 12-inch diameter) 
(5)      All other connections                                                 $125.00  
 



No permit shall be issued until the appropriate application is made and the applicable fee is 
paid. 
  
     (b)     Discharges Into Storm Sewers Regulated.  Storm water and all other unpolluted 
drainage shall be discharged to such sewers as are specifically designated as storm sewers, or to 
a natural outlet approved by the Public Works Director. Industrial cooling water or unpolluted 
process waters may be discharged upon approval of the Public Works Director to a storm sewer 
or natural outlet after obtaining the appropriate permits from the State, Environmental Protection 
Agency or any other required agencies. 
  
     (c)     Prohibition of Illegal Discharges.  No person, firm, or corporation shall discharge or 
cause to be discharged into a public storm sewer or watercourse any substance other than storm 
water, except as follows: 
    
           (1)     Water line flushing or other potable water discharges, irrigation or lawn watering, 
diverted stream flows, rising ground water, uncontaminated ground water infiltration, 
uncontaminated pumped ground water, foundation or footing drains, water from crawl space 
pumps, air conditioning condensation, springs, individual residential vehicle washing, natural 
riparian habitat or wetland flows, dechlorinated swimming pool discharges, water from fire 
fighting activities, and any other water source not containing pollutants THAT ARE NOT 
OTHERWISE IDENTIFIED BY THE OHIO EPA AS A PROHIBITED NON-STORMWATER 
DISCHARGE SOURCE.   
  
  
    
  
           (2)     Discharges specified in writing by the Public Works Director or his designee as 
being necessary to protect public health and safety.   
  
           (3)     Any non-storm water discharge permitted under an NPDES permit, waiver, or waste 
discharge order issued to the discharger and administered under the authority of the Federal 
Environmental Protection Agency, provided that the discharge is in full compliance with all 
requirements of the permit, waiver, or order and other applicable laws and regulations.   
  
     (d)     Prohibition of Certain Connections.  The construction, use, maintenance or continued 
existence of any drain or conveyance, whether on the surface or subsurface, which allows a 
prohibited substance to enter a public storm sewer or watercourse is prohibited.  This prohibition 
expressly includes, without limitation, connections made in the past, regardless of whether the 
connection was permissible under law or practices applicable or prevailing at the time of 
connection.  When a prohibited connection is discovered, the Public Works Director will provide 
written notice to the property owner ordering its disconnection from the storm sewer system or 
watercourse.  No person, firm or corporation shall fail to eliminate such connection(s) to the storm 
sewer or watercourse within thirty days after being ordered to do so as provided herein. 



  
     (e)     Inspection of Storm Sewers.  After a connection to a public storm sewer is built, and 
before it is covered, it shall be inspected and approved by the Public Works Director or his 
designee. 
  
     (f)     Prohibition of Curb Line Discharges.  No roof downspout, sump drain, or other surface or 
groundwater drainage line may be constructed to discharge directly into the curb line of any 
public street.  This prohibition expressly includes, without limitation, any curb line discharge 
established in the past, regardless of whether its construction was permissible under law or 
practices applicable or prevailing at the time.  When such a curb line discharge is discovered, the 
Public Works Director will provide written notice to the property owner ordering its disconnection 
from the curb line.  No person, firm, or corporation shall fail to eliminate such curb line 
discharge(s) within 30 days after being ordered to do so as provided herein. 
  
     (g)     Erosion and Sediment Control.  To minimize the entry of sediment and other pollutants 
into the City’s storm sewer system that is caused by construction site runoff, erosion and sediment 
control measures must be provided on all new development and redevelopment projects.  These 
measures are to be shown in a sedimentation plan that has been prepared in accordance with the 
applicable requirements of the subdivision rules and regulations. CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES 
DISTURBING ONE OR MORE ACRES OF TOTAL LAND, OR THAT WILL DISTURB LESS THAN 
ONE ACRE OF LAND BUT ARE A PART OF A LARGER COMMON PLAN OF DEVELOPMENT, 
REDEVELOPMENT OR SALE THAT WILL ULTIMATELY DISTURB ONE OR MORE ACRES OF 
LAND, SHALL SEEK COVERAGE UNDER THE OHIO EPA GENERAL CONSTRUCTION PERMIT 
FOR STORM WATER DISCHARGES (OHIO EPA PERMIT NO. OHC000004, OR LATEST 
EDITION).  AS SUCH, ANY PERSON SEEKING APPROVAL OF A PLAN FOR EROSION AND 
SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES, SHALL SUBMIT TO THE CITY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 
PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION, A COPY OF THE “NOTICE OF INTENT” THAT SEEKS 
COVERAGE UNDER THE STATE OF OHIO CONSTRUCTION PERMIT THAT HAS BEEN OR WILL 
BE FILED WITH THAT STATE AGENCY. 
 
    (H)    STORMWATER MANAGEMENT CONTROLS.  

(1)  TO MINIMIZE THE IMPACT OF LAND DEVELOPMENT AND REDEVELOPMENT 
ACTIVITIES ON STORM RUNOFF AND DRAINAGE, STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 
CONTROLS SHALL BE REQUIRED ON NEW DEVELOPMENT AND REDEVELOPMENT SITES, 
PURSUANT TO REQUIREMENTS CONTAINED IN CHAPTER 1182, 1117.07 AND PER THE 
DESIGN REQUIREMENTS CONTAINED IN THE CITY DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION AND 
MATERIALS SPECIFICATION DOCUMENT, OR ANY SUBSEQUENT SUPPLEMENTS TO THIS 
DOCUMENT.  

(2)  CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES DISTURBING ONE OR MORE ACRES OF TOTAL 
LAND, OR THAT WILL DISTURB LESS THAN ONE ACRE OF LAND BUT ARE A PART OF A 
LARGER COMMON PLAN OF DEVELOPMENT, REDEVELOPMENT OR SALE THAT WILL 
ULTIMATELY DISTURB ONE OR MORE ACRES OF LAND, SHALL SEEK COVERAGE UNDER THE 
OHIO EPA GENERAL CONSTRUCTION PERMIT FOR STORM WATER DISCHARGES (OHIO EPA 



PERMIT NO. OHC000004, OR LATEST EDITION).  AS PART OF THAT COMPLIANCE, POST-
CONSTRUCTION BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES SHALL BE MADE PART OF THE 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT CONTROLS ON LAND DEVELOPMENT SITES, PURSUANT TO 
THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE OHIO EPA PERMIT AND PER THE REQUIREMENTS IN CHAPTER 
1182. 

 
     (hI)     Maintenance Responsibility for Detention/Retention Basins. 
    
           (1)     Commercial, industrial, multi-family residential property.  The property owner(s) 
shall fully maintain detention/retention basins located on private commercial, industrial, or multi-
family residential property, whether such basins are located within a public easement or not.  This 
maintenance responsibility shall include both routine maintenance such as mowing, cleaning, debris 
removal, and erosion repair and non routine maintenance such as the repair or replacement of 
damaged or missing structural components.   
  
           (2)     Single family residential property.  The property owner(s) and/or homeowner’s 
association shall be responsible for routine maintenance such as mowing, cleaning, debris removal, 
and erosion repair for detention/retention basins located on private single family residential 
property, whether such basins are located within a public easement or not.  The City shall be 
responsible for non-routine maintenance such as the repair or replacement of damaged or missing 
structural components of such basins.   
  
           (3)     Notification. When the maintenance of a detention/retention basin is found to be in 
violation of this subsection, the Public Works Director will provide written notice to the 
appropriate property owner(s) and/or homeowner’s association ordering that the necessary 
maintenance be performed within a reasonable period of time.  No person, firm or corporation 
shall fail to perform the required maintenance within the required period after being ordered to 
do so as provided herein.   (Ord. 127-03.  Passed 8-11-03.)   
  
     (iJ)     Storm Water Quality Management Plan.  As a requirement of the City’s NPDES Phase II 
Storm Water Permit, Council hereby adopts the “Storm Water Quality Management Plan” dated 
January 2005 February 2014, prepared by City staff as the City’s official planning document for 
addressing storm water quality and pollution prevention.  All subsequent amendments to the 
“Storm Water Quality Management Plan” shall also be adopted by legislative action of Council.  
A copy of this plan is on file in the office of the Clerk of Council. 
(Ord. 20-05.  Passed 2-14-05.) 
  
     (jK)     Violation and Enforcement Costs.  In addition to other penalties listed in this chapter, 
any person, firm or corporation who violates any provision of this chapter shall be liable to the 
City for any expense, loss or damage resulting from the cleaning, repair or replacement work 
caused by the violation.  Any person, firm or corporation who violates any provision of this 
chapter shall also be liable for any fine or penalty incurred by the City caused by their violation.  



Any person, firm or corporation who must be monitored by the City for enforcement and/or 
compliance shall be liable for the associated costs. 
  
     (kL)     Compliance with Other Regulations.  Compliance with the provisions of this chapter or 
other sections of City Code does not relieve the site owner from obtaining all other necessary 
permits and/or approvals from federal, state and/or county agencies.  If requirements vary, the 
most stringent requirement shall apply. (Ord.  127-03.  Passed 8-11-03.) 
 



1105.01     DEFINITIONS.    

 

 

 

 
 
     For the purpose of these Regulations, certain terms and words used herein shall be used, 
interpreted and defined as follows:  
  

 

 

 

 

 

(1)     "Alley" or "service drive" means a passage or way affording generally a secondary 
means of vehicular access to abutting properties and not intended for general traffic 
circulation.  

  
 

 

   (2)     "Applicant" means the owner of the land to be subdivided.    

 

 

 

 

 

(3)     "Bond" means a form of security agreement in an amount and form, as provided for 
in Section 1105.08. All bonds shall be approved by the City Engineer on behalf of the 
Planning Commission and approved as to form by the Director of Law.  

  
 

 

   (4)     "City" means the city of Fairfield, Ohio.    
 

 

 

 
 
(5)     "City Engineer" means the City Engineer of the City or his agent designated to 
perform certain duties on his behalf.  
  

 

 

 

 

 

(6)     "Construction plans" or "drawings" means the maps or drawings accompanying a 
final subdivision plat and showing the specific location and design of improvements to be 
installed in the subdivision in accordance with these Regulations and with the 
requirements of the Planning Commission as a condition of the approval of the plat. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

(7)     "Comprehensive Plan" means the official Comprehensive Plan of the City and 
including any part of such plan separately adopted and any amendment to such plan or 
parts thereof.  

  
 

 

   (8)     "County Engineer" means the County Engineer of Butler County, Ohio.    
 

 

 

 
 
(9)     "Cul-de-sac" means a local street with only one outlet and having an appropriate 
terminus for the safe and convenient reversal of traffic movement.  
  
 

 

 

 
 
(10)     "Developer" means the owner of land proposed to be subdivided. 
(Ord. 141-83. Passed 9-21-83.)  
  

 

 

 

 

 

(11)     “Design, Construction and Material Specification Handbook”  as referenced 
herein means the official standards for the City governing the design, construction and 
materials used in all proposed improvements.  Such handbook dated April 2007 2014, 
and prepared by the administrative staff of the City, a copy of which is on file in the 
office of the Clerk of Council, is hereby adopted for purposes of these subdivision 
regulations and shall also have general application to the construction of all 
improvements to which it pertains in the City whether such improvements are 
constructed in subdivisions or otherwise. 
(Ord.  120-07.  Passed 9-24-07.) 

 

  
 

 

 

 
 
(12)     "Drainage plan" means a plan for the control of storm water runoff in accordance 
with the requirements of Chapter 1117 of these Regulations.  
  
 

 

 

 
 
(13)     "Easement" means a right of a person or entity to use the property of another, or 
part thereof, for a specific purpose or purposes.  
  
 

 

 
 
 
(14)     "Final plat" means the plan or record of a subdivision intended to be recorded 
with the Butler County Recorder's office and any accompanying material, as prescribed  

http://www.conwaygreene.com/Fairfield/lpext.dll?f=FifLink&t=document-frame.htm&l=query&iid=4dbb0031.360714b0.0.0&q=%5BGroup%20%271105.08%27%5D
http://www.conwaygreene.com/Fairfield/lpext.dll?f=FifLink&t=document-frame.htm&l=query&iid=4dbb0031.360714b0.0.0&q=%5BGroup%201117%5D


in these Regulations. 
  
 

 

 

 
 
(15)     "Frontage" means the side of a lot abutting on a public street and as defined in the 
Zoning Ordinance.  
  

 

 

 

 

 

(16)     "Frontage access" or "service road" means a minor street or road generally 
running parallel with a main street or thoroughfare and connected therewith at infrequent 
intervals or placed at the rear of lots abutting a main street or thoroughfare and which is 
designed to limit curb cuts on the main street and segregate local traffic from higher 
speed through traffic. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

(17)     "Health officer" means the Butler County Board of Health or other official of the 
City or County or other individual appointed or officially designated to perform the 
functions and duties of a health officer or sanitarian for the City.  

  
 

 

 

 
 
(18)     "Local street" or "collector street" means a street intended to serve and to provide 
access to neighborhoods or subneighborhoods.  
  

 

 

 

 

 

(19)     "Lot" means a piece or parcel of land occupied or intended to be occupied by a 
principal building or group of such buildings and accessory buildings, or utilized for a 
principal use and uses accessory thereto, together with such open spaces as required by 
the Zoning Ordinance of the City and having its principal frontage on a public street. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

(20)     "Lot, corner" means a lot abutting upon two or more streets at their intersection or 
upon two parts of the same street. The point of intersection of the street lines is the 
"corner".  

  
 

 

   (21)     "Lot, interior" means a lot other than a corner lot.    

 

 

 

 

 

(22)     "Maintenance bond" means an agreement by the developer with the City to 
maintain and keep in good repair all improvements of the subdivision for a period of one 
year after approval by the City Engineer of the construction of such improvements and in 
an amount determined by the City Engineer to be sufficient to secure such maintenance 
and not less than ten percent (10%) of the performance bond amount and which 
agreement shall be secured by sufficient sureties or assets. 

 

  
 

 

   (23)     "Major subdivision" means any subdivision not classified as a minor subdivision.    
 

 

 

 
 
(24)     "Minor subdivision" means a division of a parcel of land in accordance with Ohio 
R.C. 711.131 and with Section 1105.06 of these Regulations; also known as lot splits.  
  

 

 

 

 

 

(25)     "Minor street" means any street not a highway, primary or secondary 
thoroughfare, or local or collector street, and intended to serve and to provide access 
exclusively to the properties abutting thereon.  

  

 

 

 

 

 

(26)     "Performance bond" means an agreement by the developer with the City 
guaranteeing the completion of physical improvements according to approved plans and 
specifications and in an amount determined by the City Engineer to be sufficient to 
secure the completion of such improvements and secured by sufficient sureties or assets. 

 

  
 

 

 

 
 
(26.1)     "Permanent marker" means a one-half inch diameter steel rod thirty inches in 
length.  
  
 

 

   (27)     "Planned Unit Development" means the type of land development defined in the  

http://www.conwaygreene.com/Fairfield/lpext.dll?f=FifLink&t=document-frame.htm&l=query&iid=4dbb0031.360714b0.0.0&q=%5BGroup%20%271105.06%27%5D


Zoning Ordinance, wherein standards and procedures are established for such land use, 
including reference to these Regulations. 
  
 

 

   (28)     "Planning Commission" means the Planning Commission of the City.    
 

 

 

 
 
(29)     "Planning Director" means the Planning Director as defined in the Charter of the 
City or his agent designated to perform certain duties on his behalf.  
  

 

 

 

 

 

(30)     "Preliminary plat" means the preliminary drawing described in these Regulations, 
indicating the proposed manner or layout of the subdivision to be submitted to the 
Planning Commission for approval.  

  

 

 

 

 

 

(31)     "Public way" means an alley, avenue, boulevard, bridge, channel, ditch, easement, 
expressway, freeway, highway, land, parkway, right of way, road, sidewalk, street, 
subway, tunnel, viaduct, walk or other ways which the general public or a public entity 
have a right to use, or which are dedicated to public use, whether improved or not. 

 

  
 

 

 

 
 
(32)     "Registered engineer" means an engineer properly licensed and registered in the 
State of Ohio.  
  
 

 

 

 
 
(33)     "Registered land surveyor" means a land surveyor properly licensed and 
registered in the State of Ohio.  
  
 

 

 

 
 
(34)     "Resubdivision" means a change in the plat or drawing of a recorded major or 
minor subdivision if such change affects any street layout, lot line or public way.  
  

 

 

 

 

 

(35)     "Right of way" means any parcel of land taken or dedicated for use as a public 
way.  In addition to the roadway, it normally incorporates the curbs, lawn strips, 
sidewalks, lighting and drainage facilities and may include special features such as 
separation, landscaped areas, viaducts and bridges. 

 

  
 

 

 

 
 
(36)     "Sedimentation plan" means a plan for the control of sedimentation in accordance 
with the requirements of Chapter 1117 of these Regulations.  
  
 

 

 

 
 
(37)     "Sidewalk bond" means an agreement by the developer with the City guaranteeing 
the construction of required sidewalks in a subject subdivision or development.  
  
 

 

   (38)     "Subdivision" means:    

 

 

 

 

 

A.     The division of any parcel of land shown as a unit or as continuous units on 
the last preceding tax roll, into two or more parcels, sites or lots, any one of which 
is less than five acres for the purpose whether immediate or future, of transfer of 
ownership; provided, however, that the division or partition of land into parcels of 
more than five acres not involving any new streets or easements of access, and the 
sale or exchange of parcels between adjoining lot owners, where such sale or 
exchange does not create additional building sites, shall be exempted; or 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

B.     The improvement of one or more parcels of land for residential, commercial 
or industrial structures or groups of structures involving the division or allocation 
of land for the opening, widening, extension of any street or streets, except 
private streets serving industrial structures; the division or allocation of land as 
open spaces for common use by owners, occupants or lease holders or as 
easements for the extension and maintenance of public sewer, water, storm 
drainage or other public facilities. 

 

  

http://www.conwaygreene.com/Fairfield/lpext.dll?f=FifLink&t=document-frame.htm&l=query&iid=4dbb0031.360714b0.0.0&q=%5BGroup%201117%5D


 

 

 

 
 
(39)     "Tree plan" means a plan for the planting of desirable shade trees in public areas 
in accordance with Chapter 1129 of these Regulations.  
  

 

 

 

 

 

(40)     "Thoroughfare" means a major trafficway designated in the Thoroughfare Plan as 
a regional thoroughfare, primary thoroughfare, secondary thoroughfare or collector 
street.  

  
 

 

 

 
 
(41)     "Thoroughfare Plan" means the official plan of proposed regional highways, 
primary and secondary thoroughfares, and collector streets of the City.  
  

 

 

 

 

 

(42)     Other pertinent terms shall be as defined in any current Zoning Ordinance or other 
ordinance of the City or as their use and ordinary meaning indicate. 
(Ord. 141-83. Passed 9-26-83.) 

 

 

http://www.conwaygreene.com/Fairfield/lpext.dll?f=FifLink&t=document-frame.htm&l=query&iid=4dbb0031.360714b0.0.0&q=%5BGroup%201129%5D


CHAPTER 1117 – STORM DRAINAGE AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL 
 
1117.06     SEDIMENTATION PLAN.   
 
(a)     Intent. 
 

(1)     No change shall be made in the contour of the land; no grading, excavating, removal 
or destruction of the topsoil, trees, or other vegetative cover of the land shall be commenced 
until such time that a plan for minimizing erosion and sedimentation has been processed with 
and approved by the City Engineer or Public Works Director or there has been a 
determination by the Planning Commission that such plans are not required. 

   

(2) FOR SITES REGULATED UNDER THE OHIO EPA GENERAL CONSTRUCTION PERMIT 
FOR STORM WATER DISCHARGES (OHIO EPA PERMIT NO. OHC000004, OR LATEST 
EDITION), THE PERSON SEEKING COVERAGE UNDER THAT OHIO EPA 
CONSTRUCTION PERMIT, SHALL PROVIDE A COPY OF THE “NOTICE OF INTENT” TO 
DO SO AND A COPY OF THE OHIO EPA’S RELATED “LETTER OF COVERAGE 
AUTHORIZATION”, PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION. 

(3)  No subdivision shall be approved unless: 
 

 A.     There has been a plan approved by the City Engineer or Public Works Director 
that provides for minimizing erosion and sediment as consistent with the intent of this 
chapter, and performance bond or other acceptable securities are deposited with the 
City in the form of escrow guarantee which will insure installation and completion of the 
required improvements; or 
 
B.     There has been a determination by the Planning Commission AND THE OHIO EPA 
that such plans are not required.  

 
 
(b)     Performance Principles and Standards. 
 

(1) The following principles are effective in minimizing erosion and sedimentation and 
shall be MET included where applicable FOR A DEVELOPING SITE AND INCLUDED 
in the control plan. 
 

A. DEVELOPMENT OR REDEVELOPMENT SITES THAT ARE COVERED UNDER 
THE OHIO EPA GENERAL CONSTRUCTION PERMIT SHALL DEVELOP A 
STAND-ALONE STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWP3) PER 
THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE OHIO EPA PERMIT OHC000004 (OR LATEST 
EDITION).  THIS SWP3 SHALL BE PROVIDED TO THE CITY ENGINEER FOR 
REVIEW WHEN THE PLAN FOR MINIMIZING EROSION AND 
SEDIMENTATION IS SUBMITTED FOR THE DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL. 
AFTER THE SWP3 IS APPROVED AND DURING CONSTRUCTION, IT SHALL 
BE KEPT ON THE CONSTRUCTION SITE, ALONG WITH A COPY OF THE NOI 
AND LETTER GRANTING PERMIT COVERAGE UNDER THE OHIO EPA 
GENERAL CONSTRUCTION PERMIT.  



B. Stripping of vegetation, regrading or other development shall be done in such 
a way that will minimize erosion. Whenever feasible, natural vegetation shall 
be retained, protected and supplemented. 

 

C. Development plans shall preserve salient natural features, keep cut-fill 
operations to a minimum, and ensure conformity with topography so as to 
create the least erosion potential. 

 

D. The smallest practical area of land shall be exposed at any one time, the 
topsoil shall be preserved and returned to the surface areas to be revegetated. 

 

E. Disturbed soils shall be stabilized as quickly as practicable with temporary 
vegetation and/or mulching to protect exposed critical areas during 
development. 

 

F. The permanent final vegetation and structural erosion control and drainage 
measures shall be installed as soon as practical in the development. 

 

G. Provisions shall be made to effectively accommodate the increased run-off 
caused by changed soil and surface conditions during and after development. 
Where necessary, surface water run-off shall be structurally retarded. 

 

H. Sediment in the run-off water shall be trapped until the disturbed area is 
stabilized by the use of debris basins, sediment basins, silt traps or similar 
measures. 

 
(2)     The following standards shall be followed in all water management and sediment 
control plans: 

 
A.     All lots shall be graded to provide proper drainage away from buildings and to 
dispose of it without ponding. All land within a development shall be graded to drain 
and dispose of surface water without ponding, except where waived by the Planning 
Commission. 
 
B.     All drainage provisions shall be of such design to adequately handle the surface 
run-off and to carry it to the nearest suitable outlet such as a curbed street, storm drain, 
or natural watercourse. Where drainage swales are used to divert surface waters 
away from buildings, they shall be sodded, planted or paved as required and shall be 
of such slope, shape and size as to conform with the requirements of the City. 



(Ord. 167-95. Passed 11-13-95.) 
 
C.     The installation of the specified water management and sediment control 
measures shall be accomplished in accordance with the most recent standards and 
specifications available from the Ohio Department of Natural Resources DOCUMENT 
ENTITLED, “RAINWATER AND LAND DEVELOPMENT MANUAL”. A copy of such 
standards and specifications will be kept on file in the offices of the Public Works 
Director and Development Services Director. 
(Ord. 127-03. Passed 8-11-03.) 
 

 
(3)     The approved plan for water management and sedimentation control required of the 
landowner or his agent shall include, but not be restricted to, the following requirements: 

 
 
A. A DESCRIPTION OF THE NATURE AND TYPE OF THE CONSTRUCTION 
ACTIVITY. 
 
B. INDICATE THE TOTAL AREA OF THE SITE AND THE AREA OF THE SITE THAT IS 
EXPECTED TO BE DISTURBED (I.E., GRUBBING, CLEARING, EXCAVATION, FILLING 
OR GRADING, INCLUDING OFF-SITE BORROW AREAS). 
 
C. AN ESTIMATE OF THE IMPERVIOUS AREA AND PERCENT IMPERVIOUSNESS 
CREATED BY THE 
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY. 
 
D. A CALCULATION OF THE RUNOFF COEFFICIENTS FOR BOTH THE PRE-
CONSTRUCTION AND POST- CONSTRUCTION SITE CONDITIONS.  
 
E. EXISTING DATA DESCRIBING THE SOIL AND, IF AVAILABLE, THE QUALITY OF 
ANY DISCHARGE FROM THE SITE. 
 
F. THE NAME AND/OR LOCATION OF THE IMMEDIATE RECEIVING STREAM OR 
SURFACE WATER(S) AND THE FIRST SUBSEQUENT NAMED RECEIVING WATER(S) 
AND THE AREAL EXTENT AND DESCRIPTION OF WETLANDS OR OTHER SPECIAL 
AQUATIC SITES AT OR NEAR THE SITE WHICH WILL BE DISTURBED OR WHICH WILL 
RECEIVE DISCHARGES FROM DISTURBED AREAS OF THE PROJECT. FOR 
DISCHARGES TO THE MS4, THE POINT OF DISCHARGE TO THE MS4 AND THE 
LOCATION WHERE THE MS4 ULTIMATELY DISCHARGES TO A STREAM OR 
SURFACE WATER OF THE STATE SHALL BE INDICATED. 
 
G. A DESCRIPTION OF PRIOR LAND USES AT THE SITE. 

 
H. A SITE MAP IDENTIFYING THE FOLLOWING:  

 
 (1.)    LIMITS OF EARTH-DISTURBING ACTIVITY OF THE SITE INCLUDING 
ASSOCIATED OFF-SITE BORROW OR SPOIL AREAS THAT ARE NOT ADDRESSED 
BY A SEPARATE NOI AND ASSOCIATED SWP3. 

 



(2.)  Elevations and/or contours, dimensions, location and extent of all work 
proposed to be done, and the existing elevations and/or contours of the land all in 
two foot increments. A DELINEATION OF DRAINAGE WATERSHEDS EXPECTED 
DURING AND AFTER MAJOR GRADING ACTIVITIES AS WELL AS THE SIZE OF 
EACH DRAINAGE WATERSHED, IN ACRES. 
 
(3.) SOILS TYPES FOR ALL AREAS OF THE SITE, INCLUDING LOCATIONS OF 
UNSTABLE OR HIGHLY ERODIBLE SOILS. 

 
(4.) Location of any buildings, structures, utilities, sewers, water and storm 
drains on the site where the work is to be performed. 
 
(5.)   Location of any building or structure on land of adjacent property owners 
within 100 feet of the site. 
 
(6.) THE LOCATION OF ALL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL 
PRACTICES THAT ARE DESIGNED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE OHIO EPA 
GENERAL CONSTRUCTION PERMIT REQUIREMENTS AND ODNR RAINWATER 
AND LAND DEVELOPMENT MANUAL STANDARDS, INCLUDING THE LOCATION 
OF AREAS LIKELY TO REQUIRE TEMPORARY STABILIZATION DURING THE 
COURSE OF SITE DEVELOPMENT. 
 
(7.) SEDIMENT AND STORM WATER MANAGEMENT BASINS NOTING THEIR 
SEDIMENT SETTLING VOLUME AND CONTRIBUTING DRAINAGE AREA. 
 
(8.) FOR SUBDIVIDED DEVELOPMENTS WHERE THE SWP3 DOES NOT CALL 
FOR A CENTRALIZED SEDIMENT CONTROL CAPABLE OF CONTROLLING 
MULTIPLE INDIVIDUAL LOTS, A DETAIL DRAWING OF A TYPICAL INDIVIDUAL 
LOT SHOWING STANDARD INDIVIDUAL LOT EROSION AND SEDIMENT 
CONTROL PRACTICES. 
 
(9.) THE LOCATION OF DESIGNATED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCES WHERE 
THE VEHICLES WILL ACCESS THE CONSTRUCTION SITE. 
 
(10.) THE LOCATION OF ANY IN-STREAM ACTIVITIES INCLUDING STREAM 
CROSSINGS. 
 
(11.) AREAS DESIGNATED FOR THE STORAGE OR DISPOSAL OF SOLID, 
SANITARY AND TOXIC WASTES, INCLUDING DUMPSTER AREAS, AREAS 
DESIGNATED FOR CEMENT TRUCK WASHOUT, AND VEHICLE FUELING; 

 
(12.) Detailed plans of all drainage provisions, retaining walls, cribbing, 

vegetative practices, erosion and sediment control measures, location of 
proposed fences around sediment basins, steep excavations, or ponding areas, 
and other protective devices to be constructed in connection with, or as a part 
of the proposed work, together with a map showing the drainage area of land 
tributary to the site, and estimated cubic foot per second run-off of the area 
served by any drain, computed in accordance with current City storm drainage 
criteria. 



 
I. STRUCTURAL PRACTICES SHALL BE USED TO CONTROL EROSION AND TRAP 
SEDIMENT FROM A SITE REMAINING DISTURBED FOR MORE THAN 14 DAYS. 
SEDIMENT CONTROL STRUCTURES SHALL BE FUNCTIONAL THROUGHOUT THE 
COURSE OF EARTH DISTURBING ACTIVITY. SEDIMENT BASINS AND PERIMETER 
SEDIMENT BARRIERS SHALL BE IMPLEMENTED PRIOR TO GRADING AND WITHIN 
SEVEN DAYS FROM THE START OF GRUBBING. 

 
J. TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT SOIL STABILIZATION CONTROLS IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE OHIO EPA GENERAL CONSTRUCTION PERMIT 
REQUIREMENTS AND ODNR RAINWATER AND LAND DEVELOPMENT MANUAL 
STANDARDS. 
 
K. DETAIL DRAWINGS FOR ALL STRUCTURAL PRACTICES THAT INCLUDE 
INSTALLATION, INSPECTION, AND MAINTENANCE PROCEDURES.   
 
L.     A certification of the quantity of excavation and fill involved. 
 
M.     A timing schedule and sequence indicating the anticipated starting and 
completion dates of the development; stripping and/or clearing, rough grading and 
construction, final grading and vegetative establishment, and maintenance and the time 
of exposure of each area prior to the completion of effective erosion and sediment 
control measures. 
 
N.     The estimated cost of the grading and/or filling and the cost of the required 
erosion controls. 
 

   

 (c)     Approval Procedures. 

(1)     Three backline copies of complete plans shall be filed with the office of the City 
Engineer. 
 
(2)     In order to insure that emergency measures could be taken by the City if the water 
management and sediment control measures were not implemented according to the agreed 
upon plan and schedule, a performance bond in the amount of the cost of the water 
management and sediment control measures shall be required to be filed with the City. Such 
performance bond shall authorize immediate payment to the City upon certification of the 
Planning Commission that necessary emergency work must be done immediately to ensure 
proper water management and sediment control as a result of the landowner's failure to 
complete or adhere to the approved water management and sediment control plan. 
 
(3)     The Planning Commission and the City Engineer shall make a continuing review and 
evaluation of the methods used and overall effectiveness of the storm water management 
and sediment control program.  
(Ord. 167-95. Passed 11-13-95.) 

   



(d)     Enforcement. 
 
(1)     The Public Works Director or his designee shall en force compliance with the approved 
sediment control plans for projects that involve the construction of public infrastructure, 
including residential and commercial subdivisions. 
 
(2)     The Development Services Director or his designee shall enforce compliance with the 
approved sediment control plans for individual lot development projects. 
 
(3)     The Public Works Director and Development Services Director have the authority to 
issue stop work orders to any person, firm or corporation performing work where sediment 
and erosion control measures are not provided in accordance with the approved site 
development plans. 
(Ord.  127-03.  Passed 8-11-03.) 

   
 








































	Regular Agenda for February 10, 2014
	JPH Notice - Winton Road
	Regular Meeting Minutes January 27, 2014
	Old Business
	Public Works Committee - Sidewalk Repair Resolution
	Developement Services Committee - 4990 Winton Road Re-Zoning
	Development Services Committee - Chamber of Commerce Contract
	Public Utilities Committee - Butler Rural Electric Agreement

	New Business
	Public Safety Commitee - Liquor Permit Approval
	Public Utilies Committee - Lime Contract
	Development Services Committee - Codified Ordinance updates - Design Construction and Materials Specifications Handbook and City of Fairfield Storm Water Quality Management Plan
	Storm Water Quality Management Plan
	Design, Construction and Materials Specification - Fifth Edition 
	Ordinance and Exhibit A

	Public Works Committee - Iwata Drive Public Improvements
	Public Works Committee - Sidewalk Repair Contract
	Finance & Budget Committee - Contractual Appropriation
	Finance & Budget Committee - Non-Contractual Appropriation


